
South Oxfordshire and Vale of White Horse District Councils
Joint Scrutiny Committee agenda - Thursday, 22 OCTOBER 2015

Page 1

Joint Scrutiny Committee
 Agenda
Contact: Susan Harbour, Democratic Services Team Leader
Telephone 01235 540306
Email: susan.harbour@southandvale.gov.uk 
Date:
www.southoxon.gov.uk
www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk

A meeting of the 
Joint Scrutiny Committee
will be held on Thursday, 22 October 2015 at 6.30 pm 
Meeting Room 1, 135 Eastern Avenue, Milton Park, Milton OX14 4SB

Members of the Committee:

Councillors
Richard Pullen (co chair), South 
Judy Roberts (co chair), Vale
Martin Akehurst, South
Alice Badcock, Vale
David Dodds, South
Katie Finch, Vale
Monica Lovatt, Vale
Ben Mabbett, Vale
Bill Service, South
Vacancy, South

Substitutes

South
Pat Dawe Vale
Jeanette Matelot
Alan Thompson
Ian White

Every political group may appoint all or some 
or its members who are not voting members 
to serve as substitute members, provided 
that they are not members of the Cabinet

Alternative formats of this publication are available on request.  These include large 
print, Braille, audio, email and easy read. For this or any other special requirements 
(such as access facilities) please contact the officer named on this agenda.  Please 
give as much notice as possible before the meeting.

Margaret Reed, Head of Legal and Democratic Services

mailto:susan.harbour@southandvale.gov.uk
http://www.southoxon.gov.uk/
http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/


South Oxfordshire and Vale of White Horse District Councils
Joint Scrutiny Committee agenda - Thursday, 22 OCTOBER 2015

Page 2

Agenda
Open to the Public including the Press

1. Notifications of substitutes and apologies for absence 
 
 
To record the attendance of substitute members, if any, who have been authorised to attend in 
accordance with the provisions of standing order 17(1), with notification having been given to 
the proper officer before the start of the meeting and to receive apologies for absence.

2. Minutes and actions arising 
(Pages 4 - 8) 
 
To adopt and sign as a correct record the minutes of the committee meeting held on 30 July 
2015 (attached).  

To consider the outcomes of actions agreed at previous meetings.

To update on matters referred to Cabinet, district Scrutiny committees or other meetings or 
fora. 

3. Declarations of interest 
 
 
To receive any declarations of disclosable pecuniary interests in respect of items on the 
agenda for this meeting; and of any other relevant interests.

4. Urgent business and chair's announcements 
 
 
To receive notification of any matters, which the chair determines, should be considered as 
urgent business and the special circumstances, which have made the matters urgent, and to 
receive any announcements from the chair.

5. Statements, petitions, questions from the public relating to matters 
affecting the scrutiny committee 

 
 
Any statements and/or petitions from the public under standing order 32 will be made or 
presented at the meeting.

6. Work schedule and dates for all South and Vale scrutiny meetings 
(Page 9) 
 
To review the attached scrutiny work schedule. Please note, although the dates are 
confirmed, the items under consideration are subject to being withdrawn, added to or 
rearranged without further notice.



South Oxfordshire and Vale of White Horse District Councils
Joint Scrutiny Committee agenda - Thursday, 22 OCTOBER 2015

Page 3

REPORTS AND OTHER ITEMS BROUGHT BEFORE THE SCRUTINY COMMITTEE FOR 
ITS CONSIDERATION 

7. Annual Review of Capita April 2014 to March 2015 
(Pages 10 - 56) 
 
Report of the head of finance (attached).

Exempt items 

None.



Vale of White Horse District Council – Scrutiny Committee minutes 

Thursday, 30 July 2015 Sc.1

Minutes
of a meeting of the
Joint Scrutiny Committee
held on Thursday, 30 July 2015 at 6.30 pm
at the Meeting Room 1, 135 Eastern Avenue, Milton Park, Milton OX14 4SB 

Open to the public, including the press

Present: 

Members: Councillors Judy Roberts (in the chair), Richard Pullen, Alice Badcock, 
David Dodds, Monica Lovatt, Ben Mabbett, Bill Service and Ed Blagrove (In place of Katie 
Finch)

Officers: David Buckle, Susan Harbour, Clare Kingston and Ian Matten

Also present: 
From Biffa: Brian Ashby, Regional Manager, Scott Newman, Business Manager, and Ian 
Gillott, Operations Manager
From Sodexo: Matthew Fowler, regional director 
Councillor Elaine Ware (Vale Cabinet member for waste and grounds maintenance) 

Number of members of the public: Nil

Sc.1 Confirmation of chairing arrangements for Joint Scrutiny 

The committee will be co-chaired by Richard Pullen, the chair of the South Scrutiny 
committee, and Judy Roberts, the chair of Vale Scrutiny committee. They will take it in 
turns, where possible, to preside at joint meetings, and there will be no vice chair.

Sc.2 Notifications of substitutes and apologies for absence 

South councillor John Woodley Shead has resigned as a councillor, so there is a vacancy 
at this committee. The place will remain vacant until after a by-election, and it is not 
permissible to substitute to a vacancy.

South councillor Martin Akehurst will be absent for a period of months and has sent his 
apologies.

Vale councillor Katie Finch has sent her apologies and Ed Blagrove is here as her 
substitute.

Sc.3 Minutes and actions arising and referral 

Page 4

Agenda Item 2



Vale of White Horse District Council – Scrutiny Committee minutes 

Thursday, 30 July 2015 Sc.2

There were no minutes for this meeting to consider. Generally, minutes of Scrutiny 
Committee will take the form of action points and referral of items forward to Cabinet or 
elsewhere for further consideration. Members will have the opportunity to consider the 
progress of items at the following meeting.

Sc.4 Declarations of interest 

David Dodds noted that he had received hospitality from Biffa when he had been the 
Cabinet member for waste.

Sc.5 Urgent business and chair's announcements 

None.

Sc.6 Statement, petitions and questions from the public relating to 
matters affecting the Scrutiny Comittee 

No member of the public has given notice that they wish to make a statement, petition or 
question. 

Sc.7 Work schedule and dates for all South and Vale scrutiny meetings 

The document on page 9 of the agenda pack, outlines all meetings of the three scrutiny 
committees and allows members to see how the committees interact with one another.

The schedule is fluid and members were advised to keep up to date with the schedule 
which will be appended to all scrutiny agendas and is also available from democratic 
services. 

If members have any items which they feel should be subject to scrutiny, they can either 
be raised at committee or communicated to the chair/s and democratic services for 
consideration for inclusion at future meetings.

Sc.8 Annual review of the waste contract: Biffa 

The following people came to the table to answer questions from the committee:

From Biffa: Brian Ashby, Regional Manager
Scott Newman – Business Manager
Ian Gillott – Operations Manager

Council officers: Ian Matten, waste and parks service manager and Clare Kingston, head 
of corporate strategy.

Vale Cabinet member for waste and parks, Elaine Ware, introduced the report. Apologies 
were received from the South Cabinet member for waste and parks, Tony Harbour.

This item was previously heard at the district scrutiny committees and the minutes were 
included from these meetings to assist the members of the committee in their scrutiny.

The committee discussed this item and asked questions of the contractor.

Page 5



Vale of White Horse District Council – Scrutiny Committee minutes 

Thursday, 30 July 2015 Sc.3

The key issues were recognised to be:
Key Performance Indicators (KPTs)
Satisfaction surveys
Areas perceived to be in need of improvement.

Dimension 1: Key Performance Targets

All Key Performance Targets were discussed, those with action points are recorded.

KPT 2: Rectification of missed collections.
No data was available on this KPT, due to a systems failure. 

Action: The part year information available for the current review period, would be added 
to next year’s review to give a more complete picture (Biffa/ waste services manager).

KPT 3: Percentage of household waste sent for reuse, recycling and composting

Action: Proactively target areas with lower recycling rates (Biffa)

Note: small electrical items and textiles will be included in the next few weeks.

Agreed
The committee agreed that the overall assessment for Dimension 1 should be Good.

Dimension 2: Customer satisfaction

The committee considered the report on Dimension 2.

Agreed:
The committee agreed that the overall assessment for Dimension 2 should be Good.

Dimension 3: Council Satisfaction.

Some responses to the council level of satisfaction with the contractor were “neither 
satisfied nor dissatisfied”. The committee was concerned to understand whether these 
were items for improvement, or whether the category should be changed to “not 
applicable”.

Action: To change the heading to “not applicable” for future reports so that any response 
other than “satisfied” or “very satisfied” could be identified as an area for improvement.

Areas for improvement: The six items outlined in the report were from the calendar year 
2014. Since then, a new team had taken over the work and Biffa, and the officers, were 
confident that these matters would be improved.

RESOLVED: to endorse the head of corporate strategy’s recommendation that the 
category of “Good” should be awarded to Biffa for their performance during 2014.

Sc.9 Annual review of the horticulture contract: Sodexo 

Page 6



Vale of White Horse District Council – Scrutiny Committee minutes 

Thursday, 30 July 2015 Sc.4

The following people came to the table to answer questions from the committee:

Matthew Fowler, the regional director from Sodexo.

Council officers: Ian Matten, waste and parks service manager and Clare Kingston, head 
of corporate strategy.

Vale Cabinet member for waste and parks, Elaine Ware, introduced the report. Apologies 
were received from the South Cabinet member for waste and parks, Tony Harbour.

This item was previously heard at the district scrutiny committees and the minutes were 
included from these meetings to assist the members of the committee in their scrutiny.

The committee discussed this item and asked questions of the contractor.

The portfolio holder introduced the item. The report covered the period January to 
December 2014.

The key issues were:

Key Performance Targets (KPTs)
Satisfaction surveys
Action plan.

The committee noted that Abbey Gardens and received a Green Flag Award once again.

All Dimensions were discussed, those with action points are recorded.

Dimension 1 – Key Performance Targets

Dimension 2 – Customer Satisfaction

This was down from excellent in the previous year to good in the year under review. The 
contractor feels that this is due to the fact that double the number of customers were 
surveyed and that the sites at which they were surveyed has changed.

Dimension 3: Council Satisfaction.

Some responses to the council level of satisfaction with the contractor were “neither 
satisfied nor dissatisfied”. The committee was concerned to understand whether these 
were items for improvement, or whether the category should be changed to “not 
applicable”.

Action: To change the heading to “not applicable” for future reports so that any response 
other than “satisfied” or “very satisfied” could be identified as an area for improvement.

RESOLVED: to endorse the head of corporate strategy’s recommendation that the 
category of “Good” should be awarded to Sodexo for their performance during 2014.

Sc.10 Introduction to Scrutiny and terms of reference for joint 
working 

Page 7



Vale of White Horse District Council – Scrutiny Committee minutes 

Thursday, 30 July 2015 Sc.5

It was noted that the terms of reference for the joint committee had been agreed by both 
full councils in May 2015, however, there were some matters which would need to be 
resolved as part of the current constitution review. These included the call-in procedures 
and the time guillotine for meetings. In the meantime, the committee agreed to adopt the 
Vale’s guillotine rules for Scrutiny, which can be found in the currently published version of 
the Vale’s constitution.

Members of the committee were advised to keep up to date with the current Cabinet work 
programmes, in case there were items which they wished to come to Scrutiny.

RESOLVED: to review the South and Vale Citizens’ Advice Bureaux and the Wantage 
Independent Advice Centre in March/April next year prior to grant agreement.

The meeting closed at 8.00 pm

Page 8



Revised 5 October 2015, Susan Harbour

Schedule for Scrutiny Committees 2015/16

(further items to be added to schedule as required)

Meeting date 
and venue

Type and 
chair

Agenda items Cabinet members Strategic 
director

Thurs 22 
October
MP 6.30

Joint - 
Richard

-Review of Capita Cabinet members:
Jane Murphy (South)
Matt Barber (Vale)

AR?

Thurs 22 
October 
MP 7.30

Vale Botley Supplementary 
Planning Document

Cabinet member:
Mike Murray

AR

Tues 24 
November
Milton Park
6.30

Joint - Judy -Corporate services contract: 
report back and update

Cabinet Members:
Matt Barber (Vale)
Lynn Lloyd (South)

SB

Thurs 21 
January
Milton Park
6.30

Joint - 
Richard

Corporate Services Strategy, 
Award of Tender

Cabinet Members
John Cotton & Lynn 
Lloyd (South)
Matt Barber (Vale)

AR (SB 
lead 
officer)

Tues 9 February
Milton Park
6.30

South -Revenue budget and capital 
programme
-Local plan progress report: 
issues and options
-CIL review?

Cabinet members:
Jane Murphy
Elizabeth Gillespie

SB

Thurs 11 
February
Milton Park 7.00

Vale -Revenue budget and capital 
programme
Leisure Provision Strategy

Cabinet members:
Matt Barber
Charlotte Dickson

DB

Thurs 10 March
Milton Park
6.30

Joint - Judy Community Safety Partnership
Biffa
Sodexo
Temporary Accommodation 
Strategy

Cabinet members:
Sandy Lovatt (Vale)
Anna Badcock (South)
Roger Cox (Vale)
Elizabeth Gillespie 
(South)

SB

Tues 12 April
Milton Park 6.30

South SB

Thurs 14 April
Milton Park 7.00

Vale Review of Wantage 
Independent Advice Centre & 
S & V CAB, prior to grant 
award

Cabinet member:
Matt Barber

AR

Local Plan report Vale

Review of GLL after April 2016

All South district and Joint scrutiny meetings will start at 6.30, Vale district meetings start at 
7.00.

Page 9

Agenda Item 6



\\athena2.southandvale.net\ModGov\DataVale\AgendaItemDocs\7\3\2\AI00022237\$evlobgpb.docx 1

Joint Scrutiny Committee 

22 October 2015

Report of Head of Finance
Author: Paul Howden
Telephone: 01235 540385
Textphone: 18001 01235 540385
E-mail: paul.howden@southandvale.gov.uk
Wards affected: (All)
Cabinet member responsible: Jane Murphy
Tel: 07970 932054
E-mail: jane.murphy@southoxon.gov.uk
To: Scrutiny Committee
DATE: 22 October 2015

Cabinet member responsible: Mathew Barber
Tel: 07816 481452
E-mail: matthew.barber@whitehorsedc.gov.uk
To: Scrutiny Committee
DATE: 22 October 2015

Performance review of CAPITA for the 
period 1 April 2014 – 31 March 2015

Recommendation(s)

That the committee considers Capita's performance in delivering the six elements of 
the financial services contract for the period 1 April 2014 to 31 March 2015 and 
makes any recommendations to the Cabinet member for finance.

Purpose of Report

1. The purpose of this report is to review the performance of Capita in providing 
financial services during the review period of 1 April 2014 to 31 March 2015.

Strategic Objectives 

2. Strategic Objective - “effective management of resources”: The financial 
services contract contains a number of key performance indicators and a payment 
and performance mechanism that details a system of bonuses and penalties 
relating to these indicators.  The majority of services provided are also key front 
line services and it is important to ensure our partnership working with Capita 
continues to provide improved efficiencies and value for money in these key 
services to the public.

Page 10

Agenda Item 7



\\athena2.southandvale.net\ModGov\DataVale\AgendaItemDocs\7\3\2\AI00022237\$evlobgpb.docx 2

Background

3. The financial services contract commenced on 31 July 2006 and is a joint contract 
between the councils and Capita.  It was a ground breaking contract that included 
the creation of a shared services model to modernise and achieve economies of 
scale in the provision of financial services.  The partnership has enabled processes 
and procedures to be harmonised and efficiency savings to be made as a 
consequence.

4. The contract duration was for an initial term of seven years (ending on 30 July 
2013) but an option to extend it for a further three years to 30 July 2016 was taken 
up in April 2011.

5. The specification for the financial services contract currently comprises the 
following elements:

Service
Council tax and non-domestic rates collection
Benefits administration 
Accounts receivable (debtors) administration
Accounts payable (creditors) administration
Payroll system and system administration 
Integrated financial management information system and system 
administration (general ledger, accounts payable & receivable)
Customer contact services
Cashier services 

6. This report reports on performance in respect of both South and Vale.

PERFORMANCE REVIEW OF CAPITA
7. A system for the performance review of contractors has been devised which 

requires the following measures to be included in the evaluation:

 measured performance against key performance targets (KPT’s)

 customer satisfaction with the total service experience, and

 council satisfaction as client

8. For the purpose of this review the contract with Capita has been scored in five 
parts:

 revenues 

 benefits

 exchequer (accounts payable, accounts receivable)

 financial management system

 customer contact

 payroll

Page 11



\\athena2.southandvale.net\ModGov\DataVale\AgendaItemDocs\7\3\2\AI00022237\$evlobgpb.docx 3

9. The respective Cabinet members for Finance will make the assessments of 
Capita's performance after consideration by the committee.  The detailed officer 
assessments (based on the measures of excellent; good; fair; weak; poor) are as 
follows:

REVENUES 

Dimension 1 – Key performance targets (KPTs) 

10.Performance against performance targets is given in Appendix 1 with the 
indicators that are key performance targets for the contractual payment and 
performance mechanism in bold. 

11.The main points to note when assessing performance for the review period 
include:

 Capita achieved an in-year council tax collection rate of 98.73 per cent 
(2013/2014 98.75 per cent) for South and 98.69 per cent (2013/14 98.72 
per cent) for Vale against a target of 98.6 per cent.  The national average 
was 97 per cent and South and Vale ranked at least 24th and 30th 

respectively in the country. In our benchmarking group South and Vale 
ranked at least 2nd and 3rd respectively out of 33 councils. Considering the 
economic climate and, the fact that both authorities had a number of 
accounts on hold due to a legal issue and, that Vale reduced its council 
tax reduction entitlement, this represents excellent performance. It should 
also be noted that arrears continue to be collected after the end of the 
financial year and, at the time of writing, South and Vale’s 2014/15 
collections now stand at 99.02 per cent and 99 per cent respectively.

 Capita achieved an in-year business rate collection rate of 99 per cent 
(2013/14 98.59) for South and 99.3 per cent (2013/14 99.25 per cent) for 
Vale against a target of 99.4 per cent (this target relates to the final year 
of Best Value Performance Indicators (BVPIs) in 2007/08).  The national 
average was 98.1 per cent and South and Vale ranked at least 18th and 
44th respectively in the country. In our benchmarking group South and 
Vale ranked at least 3rd and 7th respectively out of 33 councils. 
Considering the economic climate and, the fact that both authorities had a 
number of accounts on hold due to complex legal issues this represents 
excellent performance. 

 The cash office continued to run smoothly with no issues during the year. 

12.Based on this performance the head of service has made a judgement on KPT 
performance (for South and Vale) for revenues:

                KPT judgement

Previous KPT judgement for comparison

Excellent

Excellent

Page 12



\\athena2.southandvale.net\ModGov\DataVale\AgendaItemDocs\7\3\2\AI00022237\$evlobgpb.docx 4

Dimension 2 – Customer satisfaction 

13.Customer satisfaction with council services is of high importance.  Though the 
councils are ultimately responsible for delivering customer satisfaction, the 
operational duty of providing customer service is delegated to the contractor.  
Taking customer satisfaction into account when evaluating performance ensures 
that Capita is focused on the outcome of performance for customers.

14. In accordance with the model for reviewing performance of contractors, 
measurement of customer satisfaction should be undertaken through:

 ongoing measurement by the contractor as part of the service

 independent surveys commissioned by the councils as part of their 
consultation processes.

15.To meet the councils’ requirements, satisfaction is measured on a scale of 1-5 
which is convenient and replicates the Audit Commission’s previous BVPI 
measurements:

 5 – very satisfied
 4 – satisfied
 3 – neither satisfied nor dissatisfied
 2 – dissatisfied
 1 – very dissatisfied

16.Due to its significant impact upon our more vulnerable customers, it is the benefits 
service (evaluated below) that is heavily scrutinised as far as the financial services 
contract is concerned.  The revenues collection function rarely gets compliments 
due to the nature of the service, and although the councils demand high collection 
rates they require processes to be efficient and perceived as fair by the customer.  
Capita undertook its own satisfaction surveys (guided by the councils’ consultation 
officer) on council tax during 2014/15 which gleaned the following feedback:

 For South, overall satisfaction with the (way we collect) council tax service 
was 87 per cent (83 per cent 2013/14). Ease of understanding the bill was 90 
per cent (81 per cent 2013/14) and additional information that accompanied 
the bill 83 per cent (78 per cent 2013/14). Satisfaction with methods of 
payment available was 87 per cent (87 per cent 2013/14).

 94 per cent were satisfied with the time it took us to respond to enquiries. 81 
per cent were satisfied with the information we provided whilst 10 per cent 
were not. Satisfaction with staff was 77 per cent (71 per cent 2013/14) with 3 
per cent not being satisfied.

 For Vale, overall satisfaction with the (way we collect) council tax service was 
87 per cent (85 per cent 2013/14). Ease of understanding the bill was 85 per 
cent (88 per cent 2013/14) and additional information that accompanied the 
bill 79 per cent (80 per cent 2013/14). Satisfaction with methods of payment 
available was 87 per cent (87 per cent 2013/14).

 79 per cent were satisfied with the time it took us to respond to enquiries. 79 
per cent were satisfied with the information we provided whilst 9 per cent 

Page 13



\\athena2.southandvale.net\ModGov\DataVale\AgendaItemDocs\7\3\2\AI00022237\$evlobgpb.docx 5

were not. Satisfaction with staff was 73 per cent (77 per cent 2013/14) with 6 
per cent not being satisfied.

17.South received 22 official revenues (council tax and business rates) complaints 
during 2014/15 (19 in 2013/14).  The majority of these complaints were dealt with 
promptly and although four complaints were justified, all but two were resolved at 
stage one of the complaints procedure with the other two being resolved at stage 
two. Vale received 16 complaints (9 in 2013/14). The majority of these complaints 
were dealt with promptly and although five complaints were justified, all but five 
were resolved at stage one of the complaints procedure with the other five being 
resolved at stage two. Two Vale complaints resulted in compensation being paid, 
totalling £310.

18.The annual billing process was once again carried out efficiently for both councils 
and the continuation of paperless direct debits offers a convenient facility for 
taxpayers to set up direct debits over the phone.  By the end of the year both 
councils were at their highest direct debit take-up – both at 80 per cent.  This is 
the highest achieved by Capita at any of its clients and is higher than most other 
councils.  In addition, by the end of the year 7,700 council taxpayers at South and 
7,200 at Vale had elected to receive their bills electronically.  This is comfortably 
the highest in our benchmarking group and percentage wise is probably one of, if 
not the best, in the country.

19.Following an Equalities Impact Assessment (EIA) of the council tax service in 
2011/12 Capita has continually demonstrated equalities awareness. All Capita staff 
completed a mandatory on-line equality and diversity training module during the 
year and completed quarterly monitoring forms. In the surveys (mentioned above) 
no residents of either council reported discrimination as a result of age, disability, 
ethnicity or gender when asked.

20.Regular (every three months) meetings with the Citizens Advice Bureaux were 
once again well received and did not raise any concerns in respect of either council 
in the areas of council tax and business rate collection and enforcement.

21.Capita handled 31,107 South council tax telephone calls at its Coventry contact 
centre during the year (7,300 less than 2013/14).  It managed to answer 77 per 
cent of these calls within 20 seconds (the target being 80 per cent). In respect of 
Vale Capita handled 28,600 (4,181 less than 2013/14).  It managed to answer 77 
per cent of these calls within 20 seconds.   Unfortunately, the target was not met 
as the volume of calls received during the busiest time of the year (annual billing) 
was increased due to a system issue concerning encrypted e-mails. This meant 
performance during that period was very low and whilst Capita achieved the target 
for most months they were unable to recover the overall annual performance to 
exceed the target. The council received no official complaints regarding the contact 
centre during 2014/2015.

22.Based on this performance, the head of service has made a judgement on 
customer satisfaction for revenues and the cash office as follows:

                      Customer satisfaction judgement

Previous Customer satisfaction judgement for comparison
Good
Good

Page 14



\\athena2.southandvale.net\ModGov\DataVale\AgendaItemDocs\7\3\2\AI00022237\$evlobgpb.docx 6

Dimension 3 – Council satisfaction 

23.Whilst customer satisfaction is an important priority, a further important dimension 
is the satisfaction expressed by the councils as the client on whether the contractor 
is meeting their needs and expectations.  These needs and expectations have 
been measured using the model for reviewing performance of contractors and are 
attached as Appendix 2.

24.This produced a score of 4.74 out of a maximum score of 5.0.  Based on this 
performance, the Head of Finance made the following judgement on Capita’s 
delivery of council satisfaction.

                    Council satisfaction judgement

Previous Council satisfaction judgement for comparison

Overall assessment – Revenues 

25.Taking into account the performance of Capita against KPTs, customer satisfaction 
and council satisfaction, the head of service has made an overall judgement as 
follows.  

Overall assessment

Previous Overall assessment for comparison

Strengths and areas for improvement

26.Appendix 2 records strengths and areas for improvement relating to the 
performance of Capita during the review period.  Where performance is lower than 
that expected the contract manager will agree an improvement plan with Capita.  
This has not been required for this element of the contract

Contractor’s feedback

27.A key feature of the process for reviewing the performance of contractors is that 
the councils provide them with an opportunity to give their feedback on the 
assessment, including suggestions for improvements to the council processes.  
This is included in Appendix 8.

Excellent

Excellent

Excellent

Excellent

Page 15



\\athena2.southandvale.net\ModGov\DataVale\AgendaItemDocs\7\3\2\AI00022237\$evlobgpb.docx 7

BENEFITS

Dimension 1 – Key performance targets (KPT’s) 

28.Performance against performance targets is given in Appendix 1 with the 
indicators that are key performance targets for the contractual payment and 
performance mechanism in bold. 

29.The main points to note when assessing performance for the review period 
include:

 For speed of processing new claims (the old BVPI 78a measure) Capita came in 
at 14.07 days for South (under the 16 day target) compared to13.13 days in 
2013/14. This was the third best ever in year performance. For Vale Capita came 
in at 12.72 days (under the 16 day target) compared to 12.90 days in 2013/14.  
Both councils compared very favourably with our south – east benchmarking 
group.

 For changes in circumstances (the old BVPI 78b measure) Capita came in at 
6.13 days for South against a very challenging target of 8.5 days, compared to 
6.09 days in 2013/14. For Vale Capita came in at 6.52 days against a very 
compared to 6.26 days in 2013/14.  Again, this compared very favourably with our 
south- east benchmarking group.

 NI 181 (combined new claims and changes processing) came in at an 
excellent 6.13 days for South 7.06 days (and under the 10 day target) compared 
to 6.90 days in 2013/14). For Vale, Capita achieved 6.52 days compared to 7.06 
days against in 2013/14.  This was the best and second best ever recorded 
performance levels for South and Vale respectively.  As the councils received 
more changes in circumstances during 2014/15 than in previous years, this was 
an excellent achievement.

 Capita’s focus on getting benefit assessments “right first time” continued during 
2014/15.  The financial accuracy performance rate for South in 2014/15 was an 
excellent 96.49 per cent compared to 96.82 per cent in 2013/14. Vale’s 
performance was 96.37 per cent compared to 96.91 per cent in 2013/14. These 
were above the very challenging target of 95 per cent and was the second best 
performance for both councils since the inception of the contract (and again 
compared very favourably with our benchmarking group).

 During 2014/15 the councils’ external auditors, for only the second time since the 
inception of the contract (the first time was in 2013/14), did not qualify the benefit 
subsidy grant claim. Around 80 per cent were qualified nationally. Again, neither 
council breached the local authority financial error threshold levels and, as a 
consequence, were not financially penalised.  This was reported to the Audit 
and Governance Committee meeting in January 2015. 

 Recovery of overpaid benefit, which had in the past been subject to close scrutiny 
by the councils, once again made great strides during 2014/15.  During the year 
old debt for South reduced by £290,124 whilst 57.84 per cent of all debts raised 
during 2014/15 were collected, amounting to £801,759. For Vale, old debt reduced 
by reduced by £371,751 whilst 57.36 per cent of all debts raised during 2014/15 
were collected, amounting to £813,837.  Benefit debt, which is predominantly 

Page 16



\\athena2.southandvale.net\ModGov\DataVale\AgendaItemDocs\7\3\2\AI00022237\$evlobgpb.docx 8

claimant error and fraudulent overpayments, is notoriously difficult to collect and 
prompt, firm action is required to keep on top of it.  Of the year end arrears, which 
totalled £1.9m for South and £1.7m for Vale, 55 per cent and 60 per cent 
respectively of the debt was subject to arrangements.  Our tough and successful 
collection regime has allowed the councils to significantly reduce their bad debt 
provisions over recent years.

30.Based on this performance the head of service has made a judgement on KPT 
performance for Benefits as follows:

  KPT judgement

Previous KPT judgement for comparison

Dimension 2 – Customer satisfaction   

31.As explained above, due to its significant impact upon our more vulnerable 
customers, it is the benefits service that is heavily scrutinised as far as the financial 
services contract is concerned.  Capita undertook its own satisfaction survey 
during 2013/14 (guided by the councils’ consultation officer) which gleaned the 
following feedback:

 For South

 89 per cent of customers were satisfied with the overall benefits service 
compared to 91 per cent in 2013/14. 

 84 per cent of customers were satisfied with the service they received from the 
benefits office in person compared to 86 per cent in 2013/14

 84 per cent of customers were satisfied with the amount of time it took to tell 
them whether their claim was successful or not, compared to 81 per cent in 
2013/14

 88 per cent of customers were satisfied with the professionalism of staff 
service from staff compared to 92 per cent in 2013/14

 83 per cent of customers were satisfied with the claim form compared to 62 per 
cent in 2013/14

 84 per cent of customers were satisfied with the telephone service compared 
to 58 per cent in 2013/14

 87 per cent of customers were satisfied with the information we provide about 
claiming benefits

 Out of 102 responders, 11 said they had problems using the benefits service.

 For Vale

Excellent

Excellent

Page 17



\\athena2.southandvale.net\ModGov\DataVale\AgendaItemDocs\7\3\2\AI00022237\$evlobgpb.docx 9

 98 per cent of customers were satisfied with the overall benefits service 
compared to 89 per cent in 2013/14

 90 per cent of customers were satisfied with the service they received from the 
benefits office in person compared to 82 per cent in 2013/14

 91 per cent of customers were satisfied with the amount of time it took to tell 
them whether their claim was successful or not, compared to 86 per cent in 
2013/14

 95 per cent of customers were satisfied with the professionalism of staff 
service from staff compared to 90 per cent in 2013/14

 91 per cent of customers were satisfied with the claim form compared to 62 per 
cent in 2013/14

 86 per cent of customers were satisfied with the telephone service compared 
to 72 per cent in 2013/14

 93 per cent of customers were satisfied with the information we provide about 
claiming benefits

 Out of 83 responders, five said they had problems using the benefits service.

32.The financial services contract with Capita is heavily weighted towards achieving 
good performance and high levels of customer care and satisfaction.  It also 
specifies building up good working relationships with stakeholders – both internal 
(e.g. the councils’ Housing Services Team who share approximately 400 mutual 
customers at any one time) and external (e.g. Registered Social Landlords – RSLs 
– who share approximately 8,000 mutual customers at any one time), to promote 
joint working where appropriate to improve the end customer experience.  To this 
end Capita has:

 conducted joint visits with both Housing and RSL staff where this has been 
requested and held surgeries at RSL offices

 trained Housing and RSL staff to verify benefit applications (which avoids 
unnecessary duplication)

 held meetings with Housing staff where required to address working practices 
to improve efficiency and effectiveness, end customer experience, and, service 
level agreements

 held benefit surgeries around the districts where there was demand for them.  
This increases customer access to the service and is an alternative to home 
visits.  

33.Generally, very positive feedback was received from RSL’s and the CABx via 
regular liaison meetings during 2014/15.  This is always a good yardstick as these 
organisations predominantly represent the most vulnerable of our customers.  

34.Capita handled 15,889 South benefit telephone calls at its Coventry contact centre 
during the year (6,055 less than 2013/14).  It managed to answer 78 per cent of 
these calls within 20 seconds (the target being 80 per cent). In respect of Vale 

Page 18



\\athena2.southandvale.net\ModGov\DataVale\AgendaItemDocs\7\3\2\AI00022237\$evlobgpb.docx 10

Capita handled 15,805 (171 less than 2013/14).  It managed to answer 79 per cent 
of these calls within 20 seconds. Unfortunately, the target was not met due to the 
impact of the encryption issue referred to previously under the revenues review.

35. It is fair to say that the councils and Capita continued to manage the national 
welfare changes very well. The council received no official complaints regarding 
the contact centre during 2014/15 in respect of benefit calls.   

36.Capita continued with the councils’ Equality Impact Assessment (EIA) tasks which 
advance equal opportunities for people protected by the Equality Act.  During 
2014/15 Capita held surgeries where there was a demand. All Capita staff 
completed a mandatory on-line equality and diversity training module during the 
year and Capita completed quarterly monitoring forms. In the surveys (mentioned 
above) no residents of either council reported discrimination as a result of age, 
disability, ethnicity or gender when asked.

37.South received 3 official benefits complaints during 2014/15 (6 in 2013/14).  All 
three were resolved at stage one of the complaints procedure, with two justified. 
Vale received 8 complaints (3 in 2013/14). All were resolved at stage one, with two 
being justified – with one receiving £100 compensation.  

38.Based on this performance, the head of service has made a judgement on 
customer satisfaction for benefits as follows:

          Customer satisfaction judgement

Previous Customer satisfaction judgement for comparison

Dimension 3 – Council satisfaction 

39.Whilst customer satisfaction is an important priority, a further important dimension 
is the satisfaction expressed by the councils as the client on whether the contractor 
is meeting their needs and expectations.  These needs and expectations have 
been measured using the model for reviewing performance of contractors and are 
attached as Appendix 3.

40.This produced a score of 4.84 out of a maximum score of 5.0.  Based on this 
performance, the Head of Finance made the following judgement on Capita’s 
delivery of council satisfaction.

                   Council satisfaction judgement

Previous Council satisfaction judgement for comparison

Overall assessment – Benefits

41.Taking into account the performance of Capita against KPT’s, customer 
satisfaction and council satisfaction, the head of service has made an overall 
judgement as follows.  

Excellent

Good

Good

Excellent

Page 19



\\athena2.southandvale.net\ModGov\DataVale\AgendaItemDocs\7\3\2\AI00022237\$evlobgpb.docx 11

                  Overall assessment

Previous Overall assessment for comparison

Strengths and areas for improvement

42.Appendix 3 records strengths and areas for improvement relating to the 
performance of Capita during the review period.  Where performance is lower than 
that expected the councils will agree an improvement plan with Capita.  

Contractor’s feedback

43.A key feature of the process for reviewing the performance of contractors is that 
the councils provide them with an opportunity to give their feedback on the 
assessment, including suggestions for improvements to the council processes.  
This is included in Appendix 8.

Excellent

Excellent

Page 20



\\athena2.southandvale.net\ModGov\DataVale\AgendaItemDocs\7\3\2\AI00022237\$evlobgpb.docx 12

EXCHEQUER – ACCOUNTS PAYABLE AND ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE  

Dimension 1 – Key performance targets (KPTs) 

44.Accounts Receivable – maximising sundry debt collections was a key theme of 
the financial services procurement and during 2014/15 the councils (their legal 
representative and cost centre managers), assisted by Capita, finished the end of 
the year with pretty decent (low) arrears levels over 30 days – to the sum of £149k 
for South (£35k 2013/14) and £211k for Vale (£187k 2013/14). When compared 
to figures of in excess of £1million at the commencement of the contract, it shows 
how the councils’ firm debt strategy, aided by Capita, has worked well. Considering 
the disruption caused by the fire, keeping arrears to such low levels was 
outstanding, especially when considering the two councils billed over £23million 
between them during the year.

45.Capita performance in issuing invoices within two working days of instructions from 
cost centres was 99.8 per cent for both South and Vale.  Capita hit 100 per cent 
performance for the production of reminders for both South and Vale after 14 days 
and final notices after 28 days.  Important aged debt reports (required for 
monitoring debt progress) and legal lists (required to determine recovery action) 
were issued promptly for the first part of the year, likewise write-offs of 
unrecoverable debts were processed promptly. However, during the course of the 
year (from August 2014) some aspects of the service started to deteriorate, 
including the prompt issue of reports. Queries and therefore monitoring had to be 
stepped up.

46.  From 1 May 2012, Capita took on the administrative functions relating to the 
garden waste service.  One of the reasons behind this was to maximise the 
number of customers paying for the service. This involved writing to all non-direct 
debit customers to get them to switch to direct debit.  By the end of 2014/15, 
South and Vale had 30,323 and 23,367 garden waste customers respectively with 
99.2 per cent paying by direct debit at both council’s.  Capita took 16,099 calls 
during 2014/15 and issued 24,669 garden waste invoices for South, whilst the 
figures at Vale were 9,858 and 18,786 respectively.  In addition, Capita completed 
a weekly direct debit run to maximise collections. Capita introduced the ability for 
customers to sign up online two years ago and during 2014/15 around 50 per cent 
of customers signed up by this method. In addition over 98 per cent of new 
customers provided an email address.  

47.Accounts Payable -   Capita started 2014/15 where it left off at the end of 
2013/14.  Invoices received were scanned and distributed to service teams within 
48 hours and urgent payment requests (within the same day) were met.  In 
addition, purchase order requests were met.

48.However, during the course of 2014/15 the service provided deteriorated.  
Invoices were not being scanned and distributed promptly, communications broke 
down and various system problems were encountered.  This all led to delays in 
payments to suppliers and serious frustration for service teams. At the end of the 
year, payments made within 30 days came in at 97.82 per cent for South (99.38 
per cent 2014/15) and 97.58 per cent for Vale (99.45 per cent 2014/15).

Page 21



\\athena2.southandvale.net\ModGov\DataVale\AgendaItemDocs\7\3\2\AI00022237\$evlobgpb.docx 13

49.Council staff worked with Capita to try and overcome these difficulties but, at 
times, this was hampered by Capita being unwilling to accept the issues being 
encountered and taking steps to address them.

50.Notwithstanding the above, it should be acknowledged that in the aftermath of the 
Crowmarsh fire, Capita performed brilliantly in assisting council officers to 
implement temporary measures to make payments to suppliers.  Not only did this 
help maintain some existing supplier relationships, it also helped the councils 
order replacements for items destroyed by the fire.

51.Based on this performance the head of service has made a judgement on KPT 
performance for exchequer as follows:

         KPT judgement

Previous KPT judgement for comparison

Dimension 2 – Customer satisfaction 

52.Accounts payable – as stated above, despite a strong start to the year, 
performance severely dipped during the course of the year.  This not only affected 
Capita’s relationship with service teams, but at times also damaged the councils’ 
relationships with their suppliers.

53.Capita has processes in place to provide the council with weekly and monthly 
reports of invoices waiting to be paid or those that were paid late.  Whilst these 
were provided fairly regularly by Capita during the course of the year, as service 
levels dropped council officers often had to chase Capita to provide the reports.

54.Accounts receivable – As stated above, although headline performance is 
generally good, certain aspects of the service deteriorated during the year. This led 
to more client side monitoring and intervention, with Capita implementing skills and 
progression schemes for its new staff. Generally, although there were issues with 
some debtors, there was only one official complaint (which was justified) received 
through the complaints procedure and during the year. This was in respect of a 
South debtor.

55.Based on this performance, the head of service has made a judgement on council 
satisfaction for exchequer as follows:

                    Customer satisfaction judgement

Previous Customer satisfaction judgement for comparison

 

Dimension 3 – Council satisfaction 

56.Whilst customer satisfaction is an important priority, a further important dimension 
is the satisfaction expressed by the councils as the client on whether the contractor 
is meeting their needs and expectations.  

Fair

Good

Excellent

Excellent

Page 22



\\athena2.southandvale.net\ModGov\DataVale\AgendaItemDocs\7\3\2\AI00022237\$evlobgpb.docx 14

57.The councils’ needs and expectations have been measured using the model for 
reviewing performance of contractors and are attached as Appendix 4.

58.This produced a score of 3.84 out of a maximum score of 5.0.  Based on this 
performance, the Head of Finance made the following judgement on Capita’s 
delivery of council satisfaction:

                     Council satisfaction judgement

Previous Council satisfaction judgement for comparison

Fair

Excellent

Page 23



\\athena2.southandvale.net\ModGov\DataVale\AgendaItemDocs\7\3\2\AI00022237\$evlobgpb.docx 15

Overall assessment

59.Taking into account the performance of Capita against KPT’s, customer 
satisfaction and council satisfaction, the head of service has made an overall 
judgement as follows.  

                                            Overall assessment   

Previous Overall assessment for comparison

Strengths and areas for improvement

60.Appendix 4 records strengths and areas for improvement relating to the 
performance of Capita during the review period.  Where performance is lower than 
that expected the contract manager will agree an improvement plan with Capita.

Contractor’s feedback

61.A key feature of the process for reviewing the performance of contractors is that 
the councils provide them with an opportunity to give their feedback on the 
assessment, including suggestions for improvements to the council processes.  
This is included in Appendix 8.

Fair

Excellent

Page 24



\\athena2.southandvale.net\ModGov\DataVale\AgendaItemDocs\7\3\2\AI00022237\$evlobgpb.docx 16

FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT SYSTEM (FMS)

Dimension 1 – Key performance targets (KPTs) 

62.System availability.  The availability of the Agresso system has remained excellent 
throughout the period; there have been no major unannounced periods of system 
non-availability that have inconvenienced users.  

63.Systems administration.  The service to upload to the system, setting up new 
codes and new users/removing users, has proved responsive and there are no 
issues with this part of the contractor’s performance.

64.Upgrade of Agresso.  The system has had no major upgrades during the period 
reported on and therefore no comment is made.     

65.Although no KPTs are laid down for the FMS part of the contract, the estimated 
assessment of this dimension is “excellent”.  

[Notional] KPT judgement

Previous KPT judgement for comparison

Dimension 2 – Customer satisfaction 

66.Accountancy remains the primary customer for the financial management system.  
Service departments only use the web based version of Agresso.  There has been 
little negative feedback received from the service departments and they remain 
satisfied with the general service provided, system availability and response to 
queries.   

67.Accountancy services principally use the “back-office” live system.  Routine use of 
the financial management system causes no issues.  

68.We consider the contractor support on site to be excellent. The introduction of a 
Deputy Contract Manager (DCM) who is primarily based with the councils is a 
positive step and has gone a long way to address some of the communication 
issues.

69.We consider the contract management (remote) to be on the cusp of good and/or 
fair.  The changeover of system managers did not seem to go well and there have 
been clearly issues with the contractor’s workforce during the year.  We have also 
found certain offsite managers occasionally overly defensive and difficult to interact 
with constructively.  This was raised as an issue in year and was pro-actively 
addressed by the contractor.

70.Post fire response – excellent.  The support provided by the contractor following 
the fire at the Crowmarsh Gifford was excellent.  This is a shining example of how 
we and they can work together and how the contractor can be proactive and 
positive.

71.Routine query administration – good.  Some of the statistics considered by the 
Agresso Development Group (ADG) (a council/contractor group) on performance 

Excellent

Excellent

Page 25



\\athena2.southandvale.net\ModGov\DataVale\AgendaItemDocs\7\3\2\AI00022237\$evlobgpb.docx 17

dropped to their lowest point since 2011/12.  However this had been improved by 
year end.  It should be noted that there were indications that staff turnover at 
Mendip has caused some of these in year performance issues.  

72.Non-routine query administration – fair.  There are not many of these, and they do 
tend to be complex.   However, to achieve resolution of these queries often 
requires a lot of time and effort by the client to chase the contractor to progress 
them.  

73.System development – fair.  Some items on the wish list (e.g. posting to the 
Agresso server) have been outstanding for a number of years with seemingly no 
sign of resolution.  Some development activities (e.g. progressing an Agresso 6.6 
site visit, and check digits on invoices) were clearly were lost in the changeover of 
the system manager.  The contractor has been happy to attend more frequent 
meetings on this but unfortunately this has still not led to much active progress on 
development activities.

74.Overall summary – good.  There are many positive elements to report especially 
around the post-fire support and the introduction of the DCM.  Also it must be 
noted that, in volume terms, any issues raised are small in number when you 
consider the large volumes of work that are processed without error or omission.  
This year however it would be difficult to award an ‘excellent’ rating given the 
issues that have arisen over the year and the lack of knowledge transfer when 
staff have left, particularly as this contract has been running for a number of years 
now.  . To achieve an ‘excellent’ rating, the councils would expect to see a return 
to the high standards set in previous years (as evidenced by the stats) and some 
positive movement on the wish list items.  We do however have faith that the 
local management are as committed to this as we are and look forward to 
working with them.  

75.Taking the whole year’s performance into account, the performance is “good”.

                     Customer satisfaction judgement

Previous Customer satisfaction judgement for comparison

Dimension 3 – Council satisfaction 

76.Whilst customer satisfaction is an important priority, a further important dimension 
is the satisfaction expressed by the council as the client on whether the 
contractor is meeting its needs and expectations.  These needs and expectations 
have been measured using the model for reviewing performance of contractors 
and are attached as Appendix 5.

77.  This produced a score of 4.3 (last year was 4.2) out of a maximum score of 5.0.     

                    Council satisfaction judgement

Previous Council satisfaction judgement for comparison

Excellent

Good

Good

Good

Page 26



\\athena2.southandvale.net\ModGov\DataVale\AgendaItemDocs\7\3\2\AI00022237\$evlobgpb.docx 18

Overall assessment

78.There has been a marginal increase in the overall Capita score which, although 
borderline, has tipped the grading into the ‘excellent’ assessment category, which 
we consider fairly reflects the general direction of travel and the general 
performance on the majority of the FMS part of the contract.  It does however 
leave room for improvement in some areas as outlined above.

79.Taking into account the performance of Capita against KPT’s, customer 
satisfaction and council satisfaction, the Head of Finance has made an overall 
judgement as follows. 

                Overall assessment

Previous Overall assessment for comparison

Strengths and areas for improvement.

80.Appendix 5 records strengths and areas for improvement relating to the 
performance of Capita during the review period.  Where performance is lower than 
that expected the contract manager will agree an improvement plan with Capita.

Contractor’s feedback

81.A key feature of the process for reviewing the performance of contractors is that 
the councils provide them with an opportunity to give their feedback on the 
assessment, including suggestions for improvements to the council processes.  
This is included in Appendix 8.

Excellent

Good

Page 27



\\athena2.southandvale.net\ModGov\DataVale\AgendaItemDocs\7\3\2\AI00022237\$evlobgpb.docx 19

PAYROLL

Dimension 1 – Key performance targets (KPTs) 

82.Capita has been providing a payroll system and its administration since January, 
2007.  Up until February 2012 the councils fulfilled the payroll inputting function.  
Since February 2012 Capita has provided the whole service.

83.There is one KPT for the payroll part of the contract.  This requires a timely and 
accurate payment to all staff and councillors.  In other words 100 per cent accuracy 
of payments by the due date.  There have been a few processing errors made by 
Capita and those that have been made have been rectified quickly with processes 
being reviewed to help prevent the problem reoccurring. Capita have had to 
complete a re-run of payroll prior to sign off on six occasions for South and four 
occasions for Vale out of 24 occasions during 2014/15 as a result of errors made 
by Capita that were picked up by HR.  If the errors had not been picked up by HR 
individuals’ pay would have been incorrect.  Although errors may occasionally 
occur it is felt that the number identified during 2014/15 was too high to rate the 
service as excellent.

84.Based on this performance the head of service has made a judgement on KPT 
performance for Payroll as follows:

              KPT judgement

Previous KPT judgement for comparison

Dimension 2 – Customer satisfaction 

85.Satisfaction is covering the period April 2014 to March 2015.  Customers in this 
context are staff and councillors.  Monthly payments have been made into 
customers’ accounts by the due date, with gross to net calculations generally 
accurate.  

86.Capita has demonstrated a lack of understanding of the requirement for pension 
reporting and HR were informed that Oxfordshire County Pension services have 
continued to experience delays in response to queries.

87.  HR also noted a few issues through the year

 Capita were informed of the criteria for pension deductions for employees with 
lease cars however their interpretation of the scheme resulted in several 
months of incorrect employees’ pay from January 2015 to March 2015

 Employees’ professional subscription continued to be taxed albeit the Council 
had been awarded dispensation not to tax the repayment of professional 
subscriptions, the situation was corrected in February 2015

 Capita’s incorrect interpretation and calculation of sickness entitlement has 
impacted on employees’ pay on a number of occasions 

Fair

Good

Page 28



\\athena2.southandvale.net\ModGov\DataVale\AgendaItemDocs\7\3\2\AI00022237\$evlobgpb.docx 20

 Capita incorrectly deducted pension payment from annual leave payments 
made to employees at the point of leaving the councils

 IAW system error relating to pension contribution banding which became 
effective from 1 April 2014 were not corrected until August 2014, this affected 
13 employees.

88.Based on this performance, HR has made a judgement on customer satisfaction 
for payroll as follows:

                     Customer satisfaction judgement

Previous Customer satisfaction judgement for comparison

Dimension 3 – Council satisfaction 

89.Council satisfaction is measured by the client based on the contractor’s 
performance against the council’s needs and expectations.  These needs and 
expectations have been measured using the model for reviewing performance of 
contractors in Appendix 6. This produced a score of 3.72  out of a maximum score 
of 5.0

90.The working relationship between Capita, HR and finance has continued to 
develop well.  However, questions thrown up as part of the monthly checking of the 
payroll are not always dealt with as effectively and efficiently as in previous years.  
It did not always respond to requests for information (e.g. maternity calculations, 
sickness entitlement) within the appropriate timeframe; however this situation is 
much improved.  

91.We acknowledge the continued support given to us throughout the aftermath of the 
fire for which the councils are grateful, however we recognise the changes to 
Capita’s staffing resources and holiday commitment has impacted on the regularity 
of the conference call to discuss the issues pertaining to the contract.

92.  HR continues to work alongside Capita to improve and refine the processes 
relating to payroll and recognises improvements were made during the course of 
2014/15:

                     Council satisfaction judgement

Previous Council satisfaction judgement for comparison

Fair

Good

Good

Fair

Page 29



\\athena2.southandvale.net\ModGov\DataVale\AgendaItemDocs\7\3\2\AI00022237\$evlobgpb.docx 21

Overall assessment

93.Taking into account the performance of Capita against KPT’s, customer 
satisfaction and council satisfaction, HR has made an overall judgement as 
follows.  

                  Overall assessment

Previous Overall assessment for comparison

Contractor’s feedback

94.A key feature of the process for reviewing the performance of contractors is that 
the councils provide them with an opportunity to give their feedback on the 
assessment, including suggestions for improvements to the council processes.  
This is included in Appendix 8.

Fair

Excellent

Page 30



\\athena2.southandvale.net\ModGov\DataVale\AgendaItemDocs\7\3\2\AI00022237\$evlobgpb.docx 22

CUSTOMER CONTACT
95.This element of the contract is managed by Andrew Down, head of HR, IT and 

technical services.

96.Capita first took on the management of Vale’s reception and switchboard services 
on 1 July 2013, having provided a similar service to South Oxfordshire District 
Council since 2007.

Dimension 1 – Key performance targets (KPTs)

Visitors and switchboard
97.The major episode affecting performance against reception and switchboard 

targets during 2014/15 was the fire at Crowmarsh in January.  The Capita team 
adapted quickly to the changed circumstances and Capita worked well with the 
councils to establish emergency ways of working.  On the day of the fire calls to 
the South switchboard were diverted by BT to the Vale switchboard number and 
the switchboard call answering service to customers continued with little disruption.  
Soon after the fire we changed the interactive voice response (IVR) system on the 
switchboard so that customers could select South or Vale as their first menu 
choice.

98.Other than for January, performance against the switchboard performance 
targets has been within the service level agreements (SLAs).  Overall for the 
year, 3.8 per cent of calls were abandoned (3.2 per cent in 2013/14), well within 
the SLA maximum of five per cent.  Call answering times were also within the 
SLA standards, and showed an improvement from the previous year.

99.Of all calls to the switchboard, customers chose to use the IVR system in 54 per 
cent of cases, so that fewer than half of the calls required a call centre operator to 
respond.  

100. As with the switchboard, so too was there a change in face to face reception 
service, with customers no longer able to visit the Crowmarsh premises.  
Unsurprisingly there was an increase in the number of visitors to Abbey House 
which at times was very busy, though Capita was still able to maintain its SLA 
performance by seeing each customer quickly and within the target times.

101. The average number of monthly visitors to Abbey House increased from 3,236 
before the fire to 4,419 for the six months afterwards.

102. Based on this performance the Head of HR, IT and Technical Services has 
made a judgement on KPT performance as follows:

              KPT judgement

Previous KPT judgement for comparison
Excellent

Excellent

Page 31



\\athena2.southandvale.net\ModGov\DataVale\AgendaItemDocs\7\3\2\AI00022237\$evlobgpb.docx 23

Dimension 2 – Customer satisfaction 

103. Customer feedback forms are displayed in the reception areas, and staff are 
asked to encourage customers to provide feedback before leaving.  Between April 
2014 and March 2015 a total of 1,375 feedback forms were completed at Abbey 
House and Crowmarsh together.

104. The question which best captures customers’ overall view of the service is: 
‘Overall, how satisfied were you with the way in which your enquiry was handled at 
reception?’  Of those who took part, 98.5 per cent were satisfied (2013/14: 99.0 per 
cent) and 0.6 per cent (2013/14: 0.2 per cent) were dissatisfied overall as shown 
below.

Very 
satisfied

Satisfied Neither 
satisfied or 
dissatisfied

Dissatisfied Very 
dissatisfied

2014/15 88.8% 9.7% 0.7% 0.1% 0.5%
2013/14 92.9% 6.0% 0.7% 0.2% 0.0%

105. During 2014/15 we received no complaints about the front of house and 
switchboard service, as in the previous year.

106.  The Head of HR, IT and Technical Services has made a judgement on customer 
satisfaction as as follows:

                     Customer satisfaction judgement

Previous Customer satisfaction judgement for comparison

Dimension 3 – Council satisfaction 

107. An analysis of council satisfaction performance appears in Appendix 7, as 
judged by the customer service contract manager in consultation with relevant 
colleagues.

108. This produced a score of 4.44 out of a maximum score of 5.0, an improvement 
on last year.  Based on this performance, the Head of HR, IT and Technical 
Services made the following judgement on Capita’s delivery of council 
satisfaction:  

                                     Council satisfaction judgement

Previous Council satisfaction judgement for comparison

Overall assessment

109.  Taking into account the performance of Capita against KPTs, customer 
satisfaction and council satisfaction, the Head of HR, IT and Technical Services 
has made an overall judgement as follows.

Overall assessment

Excellent

Excellent

Excellent

Good

Excellent

Page 32



\\athena2.southandvale.net\ModGov\DataVale\AgendaItemDocs\7\3\2\AI00022237\$evlobgpb.docx 24

Previous Overall assessment for comparison

Strengths and areas for improvement

110. Appendix 7 records strengths and areas for improvement relating to the 
performance of Capita during the review period.  Where performance is lower 
than that expected the contract manager will agree an improvement plan with 
Capita.  This has not been required for this element of the contract.

Contractor’s feedback

111. A key feature of the process for reviewing the performance of contractors is that 
the councils provide them with an opportunity to give their feedback on the 
assessment, including suggestions for improvements to council processes.  This 
is included in for the contract as a whole in Appendix 8.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS
112. The contract with Capita incorporates a payment and performance mechanism.  

Issues around the exact application of the mechanism and the changes going 
forward are the responsibility of the Operational Board.

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS
113. There are no legal implications arising from this report.

CONCLUSION
114. The Head of Finance has assessed Capita’s performance as follows for its 

delivery of the financial services contract:

South Vale
2013/14 2014/15 2013/14 2014/15

Revenues Excellent Excellent Excellent Excellent
Benefits Excellent Excellent Excellent Excellent
Exchequer Excellent Fair Excellent Fair
Financial Management System Good Excellent Good Excellent
Payroll Good Fair Good Fair
Customer contact Excellent Excellent Excellent Excellent

115. Although three of the service areas maintained their excellent rating and the 
Financial Management Service went from good to excellent there was a 
deterioration in the quality of the services provided by Capita during 2014/15 in 
respect of Exchequer and Payroll. Overall, the assessments given confirm that 
generally the services provided continue to be of a high standard and Capita 
should be congratulated for this. The governance process will continue to 
vigorously monitor the contract (especially in those areas which have dipped), 
and this, along with the commitment pledged by Capita management should help 

Excellent

Page 33



\\athena2.southandvale.net\ModGov\DataVale\AgendaItemDocs\7\3\2\AI00022237\$evlobgpb.docx 25

maintain those excellent service areas and, improve service provision for those 
areas which have slipped for the remainder of the contract.

Page 34



Appendix 1

\\athena2.southandvale.net\ModGov\DataVale\AgendaItemDocs\7\3\2\AI00022237\$evlobgpb.docx 4 - 26

Performance Targets SODC
2013/2014 
Achieved

VOWH
2013/2014 
Achieved

Targets SODC
2014/2015 
Achieved

VOWH
2014/2015 
Achieved

Percentage of Council Tax collected 98.75% 98.72% 98.60% 98.73% 98.69%
Percentage of NNDR collected 98.53% 99.25% 99.40% 98.99% 99.30%
Average time (days) for processing 
new benefit claims. 13.13 12.90 16 14.07 12.72
Average time (days) for processing 
benefit changes in circumstances 6.09 6.26 8.5 5.35 5.82
NI181 Average time (days) for 
processing new claims and 
changes in circumstances

6.90 7.06 10 6.13 6.52

Financial accuracy of benefit 
assessments 96.82% 96.91% 95% 96.49% 96.37%

Page 35



Appendix 2

\\athena2.southandvale.net\ModGov\DataVale\AgendaItemDocs\7\3\2\AI00022237\$evlobgpb.docx 4 - 27

Council satisfaction – Revenues 
This assessment allows the council (as a client) to record its own satisfaction with 
aspects of a contractor’s performance which lie outside Key Performance Targets and 
customer satisfaction.  Each officer with direct knowledge and who frequently interacts 
with the contractor should complete this form.  Questions can be left blank if not 
relevant to a contract or contractor.

Contractor / supplier / partner name Capita

From (date) 1 April 2014 To 31 March 2015

SERVICE DELIVERY
Attribute (5) Very 

satisfied
(4) 
Satisfied

(3) 
Neither

(2) Dis-
satisfied

(1) Very 
dissatsfd

1 Understanding of the client's needs 

2 Response time 

3 Delivers to time 

4 Delivers to budget 

5 Efficiency of invoicing 

6 Approach to health & safety 

7 Supports the council’s plans for joint working 

8 *

* These spaces are deliberately left blank for the addition of any performance criteria 
which are specific to this particular contract / service.

COMMUNICATIONS AND RELATIONS
Attribute (5) Very 

satisfied
(4) 
Satisfied

(3) 
Neither

(2) Dis-
satisfied

(1) Very 
dissatsfd

9 Easy to deal with 

10 Communications / keeping the client informed 

11 Quality of written documentation 

12 Compliance with Council’s corporate identity 

Page 36



Appendix 2

\\athena2.southandvale.net\ModGov\DataVale\AgendaItemDocs\7\3\2\AI00022237\$evlobgpb.docx 4 - 28

13 Listening 

14 Quality of relationship 

IMPROVEMENT AND INNOVATION
Attribute (5) Very 

satisfied
(4) 
Satisfied

(3) 
Neither

(2) Dis-
satisfied

(1) Very 
dissatsfd

15 Offers suggestions beyond the scope of work 

16 Degree of innovation 

17 Goes the extra mile 

18 Supports the Council’s sustainability objectives 

19 Supports the Council’s equality objectives 

20 Degree of partnership working 

KEY DOCUMENTS
If required, has the contractor provided the Council with annual updates of the 
following documents?

1. Annual Corporate Governance Assurance Statement? (Yes / No)

2. Updated risk register (Yes / No)

3. Annual business plan (Yes / No)

4. Updated business continuity plan (Yes / No)

STRENGTHS AND AREAS FOR IMPROVEMENT
Strengths Revenues management and support to the manager

Knowledge and commitment of staff

e-Government initiatives

Areas for improvement Supporting information for invoices

Resilience when Revenues Manager is away

Page 37



Appendix 2

\\athena2.southandvale.net\ModGov\DataVale\AgendaItemDocs\7\3\2\AI00022237\$evlobgpb.docx 4 - 29

COUNCIL SATISFACTION ASSESSMENT 

Very 
satisfied
(5)

Satisfied

(4)

Neither

(3)

Dissatisfied
(2)

Very 
dissatisfied
(1)

Votes cast

15 3 1 0 0 19

Rating Range Votes Weighting Total
weighted

Very satisfied 5.0 15 X 5 75
Satisfied 4.3 3 X 4 12
Neither satisfied or 
dissatisfied

3.9 1 X 3 3

Dissatisfied 3.4 0 X 2 0
Very dissatisfied 3.0 0 X 1 0

Total 19 90

Calculation: 90 ÷ 19 = 4.74

13. For reasons of consistency with previous assessments, and for fairness 
between contractors, the following is a rough guide to the assessment of contractors 
on customer satisfaction:

Score 4.3 – 5.0 3.9 – 4.3 3.4 – 3.9 3.0 – 3.4 <3.0
Classification Excellent Good Fair Weak Poor

Page 38



Appendix 3

\\athena2.southandvale.net\ModGov\DataVale\AgendaItemDocs\7\3\2\AI00022237\$evlobgpb.docx 4 - 30

Council satisfaction –Benefits
This assessment allows the council (as a client) to record its own satisfaction with 
aspects of a contractor’s performance which lie outside Key Performance Targets and 
customer satisfaction.  Each officer with direct knowledge and who frequently interacts 
with the contractor should complete this form.  Questions can be left blank if not 
relevant to a contract or contractor.

Contractor / supplier / partner name Capita

From (date) 1 April 2014 To 31 March 2015

SERVICE DELIVERY
Attribute (5) Very 

satisfied
(4) 
Satisfied

(3) 
Neither

(2) Dis-
satisfied

(1) Very 
dissatsfd

1 Understanding of the client's needs 

2 Response time 

3 Delivers to time 

4 Delivers to budget 

5 Efficiency of invoicing 

6 Approach to health & safety 

7 Supports the council’s plans for joint working 

8 *

* These spaces are deliberately left blank for the addition of any performance criteria 
which are specific to this particular contract / service.

COMMUNICATIONS AND RELATIONS
Attribute (5) Very 

satisfied
(4) 
Satisfied

(3) 
Neither

(2) Dis-
satisfied

(1) Very 
dissatsfd

9 Easy to deal with 

10 Communications / keeping the client informed 

11 Quality of written documentation 

12 Compliance with Council’s corporate identity 

Page 39



Appendix 3

\\athena2.southandvale.net\ModGov\DataVale\AgendaItemDocs\7\3\2\AI00022237\$evlobgpb.docx 4 - 31

13 Listening 

14 Quality of relationship 

IMPROVEMENT AND INNOVATION
Attribute (5) Very 

satisfied
(4) 
Satisfied

(3) 
Neither

(2) Dis-
satisfied

(1) Very 
dissatsfd

15 Offers suggestions beyond the scope of work 

16 Degree of innovation 

17 Goes the extra mile 

18 Supports the Council’s sustainability objectives 

19 Supports the Council’s equality objectives 

20 Degree of partnership working 

KEY DOCUMENTS
If required, has the contractor provided the Council with annual updates of the 
following documents?

1. Annual Corporate Governance Assurance Statement? (Yes / No)

2. Updated risk register (Yes / No)

3. Annual business plan (Yes / No)

4. Updated business continuity plan (Yes / No)

STRENGTHS AND AREAS FOR IMPROVEMENT
Strengths Benefits management including managing welfare reforms

Surgeries/home visiting

Equality awareness

e-Government initiatives

Areas for improvement Confirmation of debts written off

Page 40



Appendix 3

\\athena2.southandvale.net\ModGov\DataVale\AgendaItemDocs\7\3\2\AI00022237\$evlobgpb.docx 4 - 32

COUNCIL SATISFACTION ASSESSMENT 

Very 
satisfied
(5)

Satisfied

(4)

Neither

(3)

Dissatisfied
(2)

Very 
dissatisfied
(1)

Votes cast

16 3 0 0 0 19

Rating Range Votes Weighting Total
weighted

Very satisfied 5.0 16 X 5 80
Satisfied 4.3 3 X 4 12
Neither satisfied or 
dissatisfied

3.9 0 X 3 0

Dissatisfied 3.4 0 X 2 0
Very dissatisfied 3.0 0 X 1 0

Total 19 92

Calculation: 92 ÷ 19 = 4.84

14. For reasons of consistency with previous assessments, and for fairness 
between contractors, the following is a rough guide to the assessment of contractors 
on customer satisfaction:

Score 4.3 – 5.0 3.9 – 4.3 3.4 – 3.9 3.0 – 3.4 <3.0
Classification Excellent Good Fair Weak Poor

Page 41



Appendix 4

\\athena2.southandvale.net\ModGov\DataVale\AgendaItemDocs\7\3\2\AI00022237\$evlobgpb.docx 4 - 33

Council satisfaction – Exchequer 
This assessment allows the Council (as a client) to record its own satisfaction with 
aspects of a contractor’s performance which lie outside Key Performance Targets and 
customer satisfaction.  Each officer with direct knowledge and who frequently interacts 
with the contractor should complete this form.  Questions can be left blank if not 
relevant to a contract or contractor.

Contractor / supplier / partner name Capita

From (date)  1 April 2014 To 31 March 2015

SERVICE DELIVERY
Attribute (5) Very 

satisfied
(4) 
Satisfied

(3) 
Neither

(2) Dis-
satisfied

(1) Very 
dissatsfd

1 Understanding of the client's needs 

2 Response time 

3 Delivers to time 

4 Delivers to budget 

5 Efficiency of invoicing 

6 Approach to health & safety 

7 Supports the Council’s plans for joint working 

8

COMMUNICATIONS AND RELATIONS
Attribute (5) Very 

satisfied
(4) 
Satisfied

(3) 
Neither

(2) Dis-
satisfied

(1) Very 
dissatsfd

9 Easy to deal with 

10 Communications / keeping the client informed 

11 Quality of written documentation 

12 Compliance with Council’s corporate identity 

Page 42



Appendix 4

\\athena2.southandvale.net\ModGov\DataVale\AgendaItemDocs\7\3\2\AI00022237\$evlobgpb.docx 4 - 34

13 Listening 

14 Quality of relationship 

IMPROVEMENT AND INNOVATION
Attribute (5) Very 

satisfied
(4) 
Satisfied

(3) 
Neither

(2) Dis-
satisfied

(1) Very 
dissatsfd

15 Offers suggestions beyond the scope of work 

16 Degree of innovation 

17 Goes the extra mile 

18 Supports the Council’s sustainability objectives 

19 Supports the Council’s equality objectives 

20 Degree of partnership working 

KEY DOCUMENTS
If required, has the contractor provided the Council with annual updates of the following 
documents?

1. Annual Corporate Governance Assurance Statement? (Yes / No)

2. Updated risk register (Yes / No)

3. Annual business plan (Yes / No)

4. Updated business continuity plan (Yes / No)

STRENGTHS AND AREAS FOR IMPROVEMENT
Strengths Exchequer management and keenness and helpfulness of staff 

for part of the year
Management of brown bin administration process

Areas for improvement Making sure that Agresso updates notified by the grids are 
updated and correct before officers are notified

Page 43



Appendix 4

\\athena2.southandvale.net\ModGov\DataVale\AgendaItemDocs\7\3\2\AI00022237\$evlobgpb.docx 4 - 35

Resilience, knowledge transfer, overall management of 
resources at the Mendip site

COUNCIL SATISFACTION ASSESSMENT 

Very 
satisfied
(5)

Satisfied

(4)

Neither

(3)

Dissatisfied
(2)

Very 
dissatisfied
(1)

Votes cast

6 4 9 0 0 19

Rating Range Votes Weighting Total
weighted

Very satisfied 5.0 6 X 5 30
Satisfied 4.3 4 X 4 16
Neither satisfied or 
dissatisfied

3.9 9 X 3 27

Dissatisfied 3.4 0 X 2 0
Very dissatisfied 3.0 0 X 1 0

Total 19 74

Calculation: 74 ÷ 19 = 3.84

15. For reasons of consistency with previous assessments, and for fairness 
between contractors, the following is a rough guide to the assessment of contractors on 
customer satisfaction:

Score 4.3 – 5.0 3.9 – 4.3 3.4 – 3.9 3.0 – 3.4 <3.0
Classification Excellent Good Fair Weak Poor

Page 44



Appendix 5

\\athena2.southandvale.net\ModGov\DataVale\AgendaItemDocs\7\3\2\AI00022237\$evlobgpb.docx 4 - 36

Council satisfaction – FMS

This assessment allows the Council (as a client) to record its own satisfaction 
with aspects of a contractor’s performance which lie outside Key Performance 
Targets and customer satisfaction.  Each officer with direct knowledge and who 
frequently interacts with the contractor should complete this form.  Questions 
can be left blank if not relevant to a contract or contractor.

Contractor / supplier / partner 
name

Capita

From (date) 1 April 2014 To 31 March 2015

Service delivery
Attribute (5) Very 

satisfied
(4) 
Satisfie
d

(3) 
Neither

(2) Dis-
satisfie
d

(1) Very 
dissatsf
d

1 Understanding of the client's needs √
2 Response time √
3 Delivers to time √

4 Delivers to budget √
5 Efficiency of invoicing √

6 Approach to health & safety √
7 Supports the Council’s plans for joint 

working
√

8 *Contingency (post fire support) plans √

* These spaces are deliberately left blank for the addition of any performance 
criteria which are specific to this particular contract / service.

Communications and relations
Attribute (5) Very 

satisfied
(4) 
Satisfie
d

(3) 
Neither

(2) Dis-
satisfie
d

(1) Very 
dissatsf
d

Page 45



Appendix 5

\\athena2.southandvale.net\ModGov\DataVale\AgendaItemDocs\7\3\2\AI00022237\$evlobgpb.docx 4 - 37

9 Easy to deal with √
10 Communications / keeping the client 

informed √

11 Quality of written documentation √
12 Compliance with Council’s corporate 

identity √

13 Listening √
14 Quality of relationship √

Improvement and innovation
Attribute (5) Very 

satisfied
(4) 
Satisfie
d

(3) 
Neither

(2) Dis-
satisfie
d

(1) Very 
dissatsf
d

15 Offers suggestions beyond the scope of 
work √

16 Degree of innovation √
17 Goes the extra mile √
18 Supports the Council’s sustainability 

objectives √

19 Supports the Council’s equality objectives √
20 Degree of partnership working √

Key documents
If required, has the contractor provided the Council with annual updates of the 
following documents?

1. Annual Corporate Governance Assurance Statement? (Yes / No)

2. Updated risk register (Yes / No)

3. Annual business plan (Yes / No)

4. Updated business continuity plan (Yes / No) Yes

Page 46



Appendix 5

\\athena2.southandvale.net\ModGov\DataVale\AgendaItemDocs\7\3\2\AI00022237\$evlobgpb.docx 4 - 38

Strengths and areas for improvement
Strengths The contractor does work hard to resolve issues once raised

The introduction of a deputy contract manager on-site has been 
welcomed and is regarded as positive action.
Post fire support greatly helped the councils resilience

Areas for 
improvement

Issues with the remote working have occasionally caused 
misunderstanding and led to minor issues being escalated.

Continuity when staff changeover/move on could be improved

COUNCIL SATISFACTION ASSESSMENT 

Very 
satisfied
(5)

Satisfied

(4)

Neither

(3)

Dissatisfie
d
(2)

Very 
dissatisfie
d
(1)

Votes cast

7 12 3 0 0 20

Rating Range Votes Weighting Total
weighted

Very satisfied 5.0 7 X 5 35
Satisfied 4.3 12 X 4 48
Neither satisfied or 
dissatisfied

3.9 3 X 1 3

Dissatisfied 3.4 0 X 2 0
Very dissatisfied 3.0 0 X 1 0

Total 20 86

Page 47



Appendix 5

\\athena2.southandvale.net\ModGov\DataVale\AgendaItemDocs\7\3\2\AI00022237\$evlobgpb.docx 4 - 39

Calculation: 86 ÷ 20 = 4.3

16. For reasons of consistency with previous assessments, and for fairness 
between contractors, the following is a rough guide to the assessment of 
contractors on customer satisfaction:

Score 4.3 – 5.0 3.9 – 4.3 3.4 – 3.9 3.0 – 3.4 <3.0
Classification Excellent Good Fair Weak Poor

Page 48



Appendix 6

\\athena2.southandvale.net\ModGov\DataVale\AgendaItemDocs\7\3\2\AI00022237\$evlobgpb.docx 4 - 40

Payroll
This assessment allows the Council (as a client) to record its own satisfaction with 
aspects of a contractor’s performance which lie outside Key Performance Targets and 
customer satisfaction.  Each officer with direct knowledge and who frequently interacts 
with the contractor should complete this form.  Questions can be left blank if not 
relevant to a contract or contractor.

Contractor / supplier / partner name Capita

From (date) 1 April 2014 To 31 March 2015

SERVICE DELIVERY
Attribute (5) Very 

satisfied
(4) 
Satisfied

(3) 
Neither

(2) Dis-
satisfied

(1) Very 
dissatsfd

1 Understanding of the client's needs 

2 Response time 

3 Delivers to time  

4 Delivers to budget 

5 Efficiency of invoicing 

6 Approach to health & safety 

7

8 *

* These spaces are deliberately left blank for the addition of any performance criteria 
which are specific to this particular contract / service.

COMMUNICATIONS AND RELATIONS
Attribute (5) Very 

satisfied
(4) 
Satisfied

(3) 
Neither

(2) Dis-
satisfied

(1) Very 
dissatsfd

9 Easy to deal with 

10 Communications / keeping the client informed 

Page 49



Appendix 6

\\athena2.southandvale.net\ModGov\DataVale\AgendaItemDocs\7\3\2\AI00022237\$evlobgpb.docx 4 - 41

11 Quality of written documentation 

12 Compliance with Council’s corporate identity 

13 Listening 

14 Quality of relationship 

IMPROVEMENT AND INNOVATION
Attribute (5) Very 

satisfied
(4) 
Satisfied

(3) 
Neither

(2) Dis-
satisfied

(1) Very 
dissatsfd

15 Offers suggestions beyond the scope of work 

16 Degree of innovation 

17 Goes the extra mile 

18 Supports the Council’s sustainability objectives 

19 Supports the Council’s equality objectives 

20 Degree of partnership working 

17.

STRENGTHS AND AREAS FOR IMPROVEMENT
Strengths Reasonably flexible in dealing with issues post payroll deadline.

Fairly responsive in dealing with urgent enquiries

Areas for improvement Working knowledge of pension regulations, lease car scheme 
and sickness calculations.

Page 50



Appendix 6

\\athena2.southandvale.net\ModGov\DataVale\AgendaItemDocs\7\3\2\AI00022237\$evlobgpb.docx 4 - 42

COUNCIL SATISFACTION ASSESSMENT 

Very 
satisfied
(5)

Satisfied

(4)

Neither

(3)

Dissatisfied
(2)

Very 
dissatisfied
(1)

Votes cast

3 7 8 0 0 18

Rating Range Votes Weighting Total
weighted

Very satisfied 5.0 3 X 5 15
Satisfied 4.3 7 X 4 28
Neither satisfied or 
dissatisfied

3.9 8 X 3 24

Dissatisfied 3.4 0 X 2 0
Very dissatisfied 3.0 0 X 1 0

Total 18 67

Calculation: 67 ÷ 18 = 3.72

18. For reasons of consistency with previous assessments, and for fairness 
between contractors, the following is a rough guide to the assessment of contractors on 
customer satisfaction:

Score 4.3 – 5.0 3.9 – 4.3 3.4 – 3.9 3.0 – 3.4 <3.0
Classification Excellent Good Fair Weak Poor

Page 51



Appendix 7

\\athena2.southandvale.net\ModGov\DataVale\AgendaItemDocs\7\3\2\AI00022237\$evlobgpb.docx 4 - 43

Switchboard and Reception Services
This assessment allows the Council (as a client) to record its own satisfaction with 
aspects of a contractor’s performance which lie outside Key Performance Targets and 
customer satisfaction.  Each officer with direct knowledge and who frequently interacts 
with the contractor should complete this form.  Questions can be left blank if not 
relevant to a contract or contractor.

Contractor / supplier / partner name Capita

From (date) 1 April 2014 To 31 March 2015

SERVICE DELIVERY
Attribute (5) Very 

satisfied
(4) 
Satisfied

(3) 
Neither

(2) Dis-
satisfied

(1) Very 
dissatsfd

1 Understanding of the client's needs 

2 Response time 

3 Delivers to time 

4 Delivers to budget 

5 Efficiency of invoicing 

6 Approach to health & safety 

7 *

8 *

* These spaces are deliberately left blank for the addition of any performance criteria 
which are specific to this particular contract / service.

COMMUNICATIONS AND RELATIONS
Attribute (5) Very 

satisfied
(4) 
Satisfied

(3) 
Neither

(2) Dis-
satisfied

(1) Very 
dissatsfd

9 Easy to deal with 

10 Communications / keeping the client informed 

11 Quality of written documentation 

12 Compliance with Council’s corporate identity 

Page 52



Appendix 7

\\athena2.southandvale.net\ModGov\DataVale\AgendaItemDocs\7\3\2\AI00022237\$evlobgpb.docx 4 - 44

13 Listening 

14 Quality of relationship 

IMPROVEMENT AND INNOVATION
Attribute (5) Very 

satisfied
(4) 
Satisfied

(3) 
Neither

(2) Dis-
satisfied

(1) Very 
dissatsfd

15 Offers suggestions beyond the scope of work 

16 Degree of innovation 

17 Goes the extra mile 

18 Supports the Council’s sustainability objectives 

19 Supports the Council’s equality objectives 

20 Degree of partnership working 

19.

STRENGTHS AND AREAS FOR IMPROVEMENT
Strengths The front of house team delivers a good professional 

service to customers, and has shown particular flexibility  
during times of change such as the aftermath of the 
Crowmarsh fire, and (after the end of the year covered by 
this report) the move to Milton Park.  Capita's customer 
service manager keeps us well informed and always 
demonstrates a desire to offer a high quality service.  The 
feedback from customer feedback forms is excellent.

The switchboard service is generally efficient and meets all 
SLAs.  The introduction of interactive voice response has 
helped to reduce costs and has been taken up by more 
than half of all switchboard callers.
.

Areas for improvement Occasional reminders are required for timely production of 
monthly management information.

COUNCIL SATISFACTION CALCULATION 

Very 
satisfied

(scores 5)

Satisfied
(4)

Neither
(3)

Dissatisfie
d

(2)

Very dissatisfied
(1)

Number of items 
assessed

9 8 1 0 0 18

Page 53



Appendix 7

\\athena2.southandvale.net\ModGov\DataVale\AgendaItemDocs\7\3\2\AI00022237\$evlobgpb.docx 4 - 45

Calculation Range Number of 
items

Calculation Total
weighted

Very satisfied 5.0 9 X 5 45
Satisfied 4.3 8 X 4 32
Neither satisfied or 
dissatisfied

3.9 1 X 3 3

Dissatisfied 3.4 0 X 2 0
Very dissatisfied 3.0 0 X 1 0

Total 18 80

Calculation: 80 ÷ 18 = 4.44

20. For reasons of consistency with previous assessments, and for fairness 
between contractors, the following is a rough guide to the assessment of 
contractors on customer satisfaction:

Score 4.3 – 5.0 3.9 – 4.3 3.4 – 3.9 3.0 – 3.4 <3.0
Classification Excellent Good Fair Weak Poor

Page 54



Appendix 8

\\athena2.southandvale.net\ModGov\DataVale\AgendaItemDocs\7\3\2\AI00022237\$evlobgpb.docx 4 - 46

Contractor 360° feedback

CONTRACTOR’S REACTION / FEEDBACK ON COUNCIL’S 
ASSESSMENT

Capita is pleased to be given the opportunity to feedback on the findings of this 
annual report.  The contents whilst not always positive are a very valuable tool to:

 Enable key service areas to meet and reflect across a whole year

 Understand, in the context of an overall contract, the positives and negatives

 Identify learning points from both organisations’ point of view, to enable the 
service to be developed and improved as time progresses

 Document, for councillors, a good picture of the overall contract.
Capita is fully committed to this process, and believes it can be one very important 
tool for improving service to customers.

Capita was happy to be able to assist the Council during the difficult times following 
the fire at Crowmarsh and in many ways it brought us all closer together as a team, 
both physically and mentally!

The Revenues service had another very good year and we will continue to explore 
new and innovative ways to try and improve the customer experience and maintain 
high collection figures. 

The Benefit service once more delivered excellent levels of performance amid the 
many legislation changes introduced by the Government. As with revenues we will 
continue to look to improve the customer experience in the coming year.
 
Our Call Centre managed well for most of the year but again the peak times meant 
we were unable to hit our annual objective of 80/20. We are looking at better ways to 
try and manage these peaks without having to bring in loads of extra resources over 
and above those currently paid for by the Councils. Pilots are ongoing at the moment 
and early results seem positive.

Whilst Capita do not agree with everything stated regarding the Exchequer service it 
is accepted that performance did suffer from issues in the latter half of the year and 
that communication around those issues should have been handled more effectively. 
We will continue to work closely with the Council to ensure that we address any 
outstanding problems promptly and efficiently as we pride ourselves on good service 
delivery and clearly we fell short of this last year. 

. 

Page 55



Appendix 8

\\athena2.southandvale.net\ModGov\DataVale\AgendaItemDocs\7\3\2\AI00022237\$evlobgpb.docx 4 - 47

The Customer Service teams did an excellent job last year despite the difficulties 
caused by the fire and we are grateful for their continued high levels of service.
Overall Capita feel this is a very fair review of the various services and whilst there 
are clearly some high points there are obviously some where we need to improve 
things to meet both our and the Council’s expectations.

ANY AREAS WHERE CONTRACTOR DISAGREES WITH 
ASSESSMENT

Payroll

Capita accept many of the matters raised in the payroll narrative and has already taken steps 
to address those to ensure they don’t happen again, however, there are a couple of points 
where we do not agree with the points raised.

The issue raised around pensions reporting do not reflect reality. It took many 
conversations with the Council to finalise exactly what information was required in 
these reports, if this was a simple matter then surely that would have only been one 
call. Once resolved the reporting just became part of our usual monthly suite and to 
our knowledge OCC have not experienced ongoing delays.

Capita believe we fully understand the calculation of sickness entitlement but there 
have been occasions where the Council have changed entitlement for certain 
employees and communication of this has not been as good as it should have been, 
leading to slight errors on the calculations.

WHAT COULD / SHOULD THE COUNCIL DO DIFFERENTLY TO 
ENABLE THE CONTRACTOR TO DELIVER THE SERVICE MORE 
EFFICIENTLY / EFFECTIVELY / ECONOMICALLY?

Capita is happy with the current relationship which allows much more of a 
partnership approach to service delivery. Although there have been some difficulties 
with performance we believe communication between our services has much 
improved and this can only be a good thing moving forward.

Feedback provided by D Keen Date 16th October 2015

Page 56


	Agenda
	2 Minutes and actions arising
	Minutes

	6 Work schedule and dates for all South and Vale scrutiny meetings
	7 Annual Review of Capita April 2014 to March 2015



